
2/14/2024 

 
 

 

 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 

February 20, 2024 @ 7 PM  
257 W Monroe St Bangor, MI 49013                                                             

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. ROLL CALL  

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

5. APPROVAL OF CITY COUNCIL MINUTES: 
a. Approval of Regular City Council minutes for 02/05/24 

6. APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND PAYROLL 
Reviewed by Councilmember Uplinger & Councilmember McCrumb 

7. OTHER REGULAR BUSINESS (RESOLUTIONS, PROCLAMATIONS, REPORTS, AND PRESENTATIONS) 
a. RBDG Parking Lot Project Resolution #2024-03 (Abonmarche Representative) 

b. Lions Club/Apple Festival Road Closure (Lions Club Representative)  

c. Department Head Reports 

i) City Treasurer (Treasurer Stephenie Cagle) 

ii) DPW (DPW Director Steve Lowder) 

iii) Fire Department (Fire Chief Derek Babcock) 

iv) Police Department (Police Officer) 

v) Other 

8. OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT (PLEASE KEEP COMMENTS TO WITHIN 3 MINUTES) 

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. City Logo (City Manager Justin Weber) 

b. Pump at Well #9/Water Tower Lab (DPW Director Steve Lowder) 

i) Peerless Midwest 

c. Bryce Saylor/Total Lawn Care Invoices (City Attorney Scott Graham) 

10. NEW BUSINESS  
a. Helène Rivers Board of Review Resignation (Mayor Farmer) 

11. OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT (PLEASE KEEP COMMENTS TO WITHIN 3 MINUTES) 

12. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 

13. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

 
PLEASE NOTE: AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
Under “Opportunity for Public Comment,” members of the audience may address the Council, please limit your comments 
to three minutes or less per item. When asked please state your first and last name and address. 
 

The proposed process for items listed under agenda items above shall be as follows: 
1. Announcement of the agenda item by the Mayor. 
2. Verbal report provided. 
3. Mayor asks council members if they have any questions to clarify the report. 
4. Motion is made by a council member and seconded by another council member. 
5. Mayor then calls on council members to discuss the motion if council members wish to discuss. 
6. Mayor calls for a vote on the item after discussion has occurred. 



 

1 | P a g e  
 

CITY OF BANGOR 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

February 5, 2024 @ 7:00 PM 
257 W. Monroe St. Bangor, MI // City Council Room 

 
1. CALL TO ODER. 

Meeting was called to order at 7:00 PM by Mayor Farmer. 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.  
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all present. 
 

3. ROLL CALL.  
Attendee Name Title Status 

Pati Martinez-Serratos Mayor Pro Tem Present 
Heléne Rivers Councilmember Present 
Jeremy Uplinger Councilmember Present 
Jerry Muenzer Councilmember Present 
Amber Garcia Councilmember Present 
Darla McCrumb Councilmember Present 
Lynne Farmer Mayor Present 

 
OTHERS PRESENT. 
Interim City Manager Justin Weber, Acting DPW Director Steve Lowder, Treasurer Stephenie Cagle, 
Clerk Shelly Umbanhowar, Fire Chief Babcock, and approximately 20 members of 
the public. 
 

4. APPROVAL OF REGULAR AGENDA. 
Motion to accept Regular Meeting Agenda with the addition of 10 f. Shelly Umbanhowar, 
Sturgis Bank & Trust Online Banking Access & ACH Transactions and 10 g. Justin Weber, 
Sturgis Bank & Trust Online Banking Access & ACH Transactions 
RESULT: APPROVED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Jerry Muenzer, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Heléne Rivers, Councilmember 
AYES: Martinez-Serratos, Rivers, Uplinger, Muenzer, Garcia, McCrumb, Farmer 

 
5. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES.  

a. Approval of Minutes of the Council Meeting held on January 16, 2024 
RESULT: APPROVED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Jeremy Uplinger, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Amber Garcia, Councilmember 
AYES: Martinez-Serratos, Rivers, Uplinger, Muenzer, Garcia, McCrumb, Farmer 

 
b. Approval of Minutes of the Special Council Meeting held on January 25, 2024 

RESULT: APPROVED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Jeremy Uplinger, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Pati Martinez-Serratos, Mayor Pro Tem 
AYES: Martinez-Serratos, Rivers, Uplinger, Muenzer, Garcia, McCrumb, Farmer 

 
 
 
 



 

2 | P a g e  
 

6. APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND PAYROLL.   
a. General Checking Accounts Payable and Payroll. 

Motion to pay bills from General Checking 2 in the amount of $129,247.13. 
RESULT: APPROVED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Jeremy Uplinger, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Darla McCrumb, Councilmember 
AYES: Martinez-Serratos, Rivers, Uplinger, Muenzer, Garcia, McCrumb, Farmer 

 

b. Roads Checking Accounts Payable 

Motion to pay bills from Roads Checking in the amount of $1,879.98. 
RESULT: APPROVED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Jeremy Uplinger, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Darla McCrumb, Councilmember 
AYES: Martinez-Serratos, Rivers, Uplinger, Muenzer, Garcia, McCrumb, Farmer 

 
c. T&A2 Checking Accounts Payable 

Motion to pay bills from T&A2 Checking in the amount of $99,897.41. 
RESULT: APPROVED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Jeremy Uplinger, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Darla McCrumb, Councilmember 
AYES: Martinez-Serratos, Rivers, Uplinger, Muenzer, Garcia, McCrumb, Farmer 

 

Discussion: Councilmember Muenzer inquired about the Landscape Forms invoice for the Chuck 
Moore Memorial Bench. He asked who approved the invoice and amount for this bench. He also 
would like to know why the cost of the bench was not just the amount of the donations. Stated the 
bench is nice but it was $3,250.00. Mayor Farmer explained that this was a decision that was 
made with the previous City Manager. Donations were collected for a portion of the bench. 
Councilmember Muenzer wanted to know why the two (2) new snow blowers from Formula K 
Equipment were not purchased at Landers Hardware. Acting DPW Director Steve Lowder said 
that Landers did not have any snow blowers in stock at the time the City needed them. The price 
was comparable if they had them in stock.  

7. OTHER REGULAR BUSINESS.  
a. The Green Door: Mark Smith, owner of The Green Door gave a brief presentation to the City 

Council. He would like to suggest to the council that they reduce the number of marijuana licenses 
in the City to one (1). Mark gave additional information to the council about his history in Bangor, 
current, and future plans. 

Motion to keep Marijuana Ordinance No. 290 as is, no changes are being made. 
RESULT: APPROVED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Jeremy Uplinger, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Heléne Rivers, Councilmember 
AYES: Martinez-Serratos, Rivers, Uplinger, Muenzer, Garcia, McCrumb, Farmer 

 

b. VB Tech Construction Traders Program: Code Enforcement Officer, William Murphy, Jr 
presented information about the Van Buren Construction Traders Program.  
Councilmember McCrumb was concerned about potential proposed property and the issues with 
Phase I and II clean up. 
Councilmember Rivers would like to know if there are other potential properties. 



 

3 | P a g e  
 

Attorney Scott Graham said that a specific request targeted at a specific property needs to be 
made in writing and presented to the City Council. The City Council would then look at the entire 
application and approve or deny. 
Motion to table item until further information is acquired. 
RESULT: APPROVED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Jeremy Uplinger, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Heléne Rivers, Councilmember 
AYES: Martinez-Serratos, Rivers, Uplinger, Muenzer, Garcia, McCrumb, Farmer   

8. OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT. 
Public comments were heard. 
William Murphy Jr, Code Enforcement Officer offered an update on 1014 3 rd St. The deadline for 
the grant demolition is August 2024. The project will need to be complete by then. The owner has 
been in communication with county regarding the grant. The Building Inspector needs to look at 
and show that it’s a dangerous building.  
Motion to have the Building Inspector look at and deem 1014 3rd St ‘Dangerous under 
the Dangerous Building Act’. 
RESULT: APPROVED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Heléne Rivers, Councilmember  
SECONDER: Jeremy Uplinger, Councilmember 
AYES: Martinez-Serratos, Rivers, Uplinger, Muenzer, Garcia, McCrumb, Farmer 

 

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
a. Bryce Saylor/Total Lawn Care Invoices. 

Attorney Scott Graham gave an update that communications are going back and forth with Bryce 
Saylor. There is no declaration of a refusal to talk and reach an agreement. The agreement is 
hard to reach when the winter weather is making it difficult to view and evaluate the work that was 
completed. When the weather starts clearing up there will be communication with Bryce first and 
then Tony with Engineer of Record/Abonmarche. When there is better weather, should be able to 
reach an agreement quickly. 

10. NEW BUSINESS. 
a. Pump at Well #9.  

Motion to approve the Peerless Midwest quote presented not to exceed $5,750.00 to 
pull pump at Well #9. Once pump is pulled, DPW Director Lowder is to report back 
to Council with a new quote for repair. 
RESULT: APPROVED (6 to 1) 
MOVER: Heléne Rivers, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Pati Martinez-Serratos, Mayor Pro Tem 
AYES: Martinez-Serratos, Rivers, Uplinger, Garcia, McCrumb, Farmer 
NAYES: Muenzer 

Discussion: Councilmember Muenzer voted ‘No’ because he believed that we should deal with 
the situation and fix the problem without delay and that we are already voting on having the pump 
pulled and already know the company and they have given us high and low quotes. DPW Director 
explained that there are not many commercial well companies and that the City has done business 
with Peerless since the mid 70’s.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

4 | P a g e  
 

b. City Manager Short Term/Long Term Goals.  
City Manager Weber presented a list of short term and long term goals. One of the short term 
goals was presented at the meeting: Redevelop the city logo. Weber then displayed the image of 
the new logo and tag line.  
Councilmember Muenzer would like the residents view on the logo change. Councilmember 
Garcia suggested we put it out front on the board and social media to get feedback.   

c. Lot Split Division Approval / Black River Road.  
Motion to accept the Lot Split Application for Parcel 80-54-651-001-01 submitted by 
Adam Stegenga on condition that the City Assessor qualifies the split. 
RESULT: APPROVED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Jerry Muenzer, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Pati Martinez-Serratos, Mayor Pro Tem 
AYES: Martinez-Serratos, Rivers, Uplinger, Muenzer, Garcia, McCrumb, Farmer 

Discussion: The planning commission approved and recommends Council accept the Lot Split 
Application submitted.  

d. 2nd Quarter Budget Amendments.  
City Treasurer Stephenie Cagle presented the 2nd Quarter Budget Amendments.  

Motion to accept 2nd Quarter Budget Amendments as presented. 
RESULT: APPROVED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Jerry Muenzer, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Amber Garcia, Councilmember 
AYES: Martinez-Serratos, Rivers, Uplinger, Muenzer, Garcia, McCrumb, Farmer 

Discussion: There are several questions about the attorney budget line item being over. 

Councilmember Garcia - would like to know who has contact with the City Attorney. 
Councilmember McCrumb – other cities funnel City Attorney contact thru the City Manager. I’m 
just looking to see if there is a more manageable amount we should be paying for Attorney’s fees.  
City Attorney Graham explains that the Charter dictates who can contact the Attorney. In addition, 
that the Council can decide however it would like if they want a log. The invoices now show the 
source of the contact, so the council can see that moving forward.  

e. CDBG Block Grant Close Out Public Hearing  
Motion to go in to Public Hearing to Close Out CDBG Block Grant at 8:28 PM. 
RESULT: APPROVED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Jeremy Uplinger, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Pati Martinez-Serratos, Mayor Pro Tem 
AYES: Martinez-Serratos, Rivers, Uplinger, Muenzer, Garcia, McCrumb, Farmer 

Discussion: Public comments were heard. City Treasurer Cagle explains what the CDBG Block 
Grant is - Sewer Lining Grant. Attorney Graham asks City Treasurer if there is any reason this 
Grant should not be closed. City Treasurer explains that there is no reason why the Grant cannot 
be closed out. DPW Director said the work is complete. Abonmarche also looked at work to 
confirm it’s complete, no money owed by the City as of now other than the final Close Out payment 
to Kimberly Carter. 
Motion to go out of Public Hearing and return to Regular Session at 8:31 PM.  
RESULT: APPROVED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Jerry Muenzer, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Amber Garcia, Councilmember 
AYES: Martinez-Serratos, Rivers, Uplinger, Muenzer, Garcia, McCrumb, Farmer 



 

5 | P a g e  
 

 
Motion to Close Out CDBG Block Grant. 
RESULT: APPROVED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Amber Garcia, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Jeremy Uplinger, Councilmember 
AYES: Martinez-Serratos, Rivers, Uplinger, Muenzer, Garcia, McCrumb, Farmer 

f. Shelly Umbanhowar Sturgis Bank & Trust online banking access and ACH Transactions.  
Motion to add Shelly Umbanhowar to Sturgis Bank & Trust online banking access 
and ACH Transactions.  
RESULT: APPROVED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Jeremy Uplinger, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Darla McCrumb, Councilmember 
AYES: Martinez-Serratos, Rivers, Uplinger, Muenzer, Garcia, McCrumb, Farmer 

g. Justin Weber Sturgis Bank & Trust online banking access and ACH Transactions.  
Motion to add Justin Weber to Sturgis Bank & Trust online banking access and 
ACH Transactions. 
RESULT: APPROVED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Jeremy Uplinger, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Amber Garcia, Councilmember 
AYES: Martinez-Serratos, Rivers, Uplinger, Muenzer, Garcia, McCrumb, Farmer 

 
11. OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT. 

Public comments were heard: everyone really liked the logo presented.      

12. COUNCILMEMBER COMMENTS. 
Martinez-Serratos: Thank you for coming.  
Rivers: Thank you for coming. Stephenie and Shelly, I appreciate all your hard work preparing, I know it 
takes time.     
Uplinger: Thanks for coming. Shelly, thanks for your organization and binders. Thanks to the Council for 
coming together. 
McCrumb: Justin, impressive goal list, thank you for your thought and consideration when planning. 
Shelly, thank you for the binders and Stephenie, thank you for the color-coding on the spreadsheet. 
William, thank you and good job. 
Garcia: Thank you City workers. Your hard work does not go unnoticed. Thank you to the community for 
coming out. 
Muenzer: History Lesson: 1870 - Reps from Chicago came to Bangor looking for seed money; In 1872 
the railroad came to Bangor and changed it forever.  
Farmer: The City has a flower fund since the City funds cannot be used for items like this. Please send 
your prayers and condolences to Claude Street, as he is grieving the loss of his wife. Thank you for 
coming out tonight. Thank you Stephenie for the highlighting on the spreadsheets and thank you Shelly 
for the binders. 
INTERIM CITY MANAGER WEBER COMMENTS. 
Reminder to Council about headshots for website on 2/21 from 3-5 PM and MML Training on 2/22 
from 1-4PM. 
 
 



 

6 | P a g e  
 

CITY ATTORNEY GRAHAM COMMENTS. 
Best practices for Council meeting roll calls is to do a rotating list. That what you do not always start with 
the same person, rotate the first vote. Mayor is the final vote. I have continued contact with the FBI, no 
information to provide as of now. I will provide information as necessary. 

13. ADJOURNMENT. 
Motion to adjourn at 8:44 PM 
RESULT: APPROVED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Jeremy Uplinger, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Darla McCrumb, Councilmember 
AYES: Martinez-Serratos, Rivers, Uplinger, Muenzer, Garcia, McCrumb, Farmer 

 
 
 
 
 

____________________________    _____________________  
Shelly Umbanhowar, City Clerk      Mayor Lynne Farmer 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA FACT SHEET 

 

To:  Mayor Farmer, Pro Tem Martinez-Serratos, Councilmember Rivers, McCrumb, 
Garcia, Muenzer and Uplinger 

CC:  Justin Weber, City Manager 

From:  Shelly Umbanhowar, Clerk 

CC:  Stephenie Cagle, Treasurer 

Subject: Accounts Payable and Payroll 

Date:  02/15/24 

 

 

Recommended Action: 

Treasurer recommends City Council approval of the following:  

 Bill List for 02/20/24 in the amount of $103,560.80. 
 Checks in between in the amount of $173.70. 
 Payroll periods: Jan Council Pay, City Manager Retro Pay, 01/29-02/04/24, & 02/05-

02/11/24 in the amount of $39,734.16. 
 For a grand total amount of $103,560.80 from the GCK-2 account. 

Treasurer recommends City Council approval of the City of Bangor Roads ROADS Bill List for 
02/20/24 in the amount of $4,250.00 

Treasurer recommends City Council approval of the City of Bangor Roads T&A 2 Bill List for 
02/20/24 in the amount of $294,350.60. 

Council Action: 

For Action 

Summary: 

See GCK-2, ROADS, and T&A 2 invoice approval list 

TOTAL AMOUNT OF GCK-2 BILLS LIST & PAYROLL    $103,560.80 

TOTAL AMOUNT OF ROADS BILLS LIST      $4,250.00 

TOTAL AMOUNT OF T&A 2 BILLS LIST      $294,350.60 

 



02/14/2024 // INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CITY OF BANGOR                                       

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 02/21/2024 - 02/21/2024                                            

BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID                                          

BANK CODE: GCK-2                                                         

Vendor Code Vendor Name

Invoice Description Amount 

ABON ABONMARCHE

150407 DWAM PLAN & DSMI INVENTORY SERVICES THRU 01/31/2024 7,500.00

150408 2023 WATER RELIABILITY STUDY SERVICES THRU 01/31/24 4,750.00

TOTAL FOR: ABONMARCHE 12,250.00

STORY, ANG ANGELA J. STORY

022024 FEBRUARY 2024MONTHLY ASSESSING FEE 1,283.33

TOTAL FOR: ANGELA J. STORY 1,283.33

AUTO AUTO-WARES GROUP

03780187434 DPW BACK HOE 206.11

03780187528 WELL #3 63.99

03780187529 WELL #3 8.09

03780187913 WELL #3 GENERATOR 19.65

TOTAL FOR: AUTO-WARES GROUP 297.84

BENISTAR BENISTAR/UA-6803

03012024 RETIREMENT BENEFITS MARCH 2024 2,822.64

TOTAL FOR: BENISTAR/UA-6803 2,822.64

BLUE FIRE BLUE FIRE MEDIA, INC

28337 WEB-HOSTING FEE MONTHLY PAYMENT 100.00

28354 LOGO DESIGN 800.00

TOTAL FOR: BLUE FIRE MEDIA, INC 900.00

CINTAS CINTAS CORPORATION #301

4182529159 DPW UNIFORMS - VANHOLT & CUMMINS 23.58

TOTAL FOR: CINTAS CORPORATION #301 23.58

DANSAUTO DAN'S AUTOMOTIVE

I009069 2020 FORD EXPLORER BASE 120.54

I009079 FORD F-250 SUPER DUTY XL 517.50

TOTAL FOR: DAN'S AUTOMOTIVE 638.04

ELHORN ELHORN ENGINEERING COMPANY

300783 WATER TREATMENT SUPPLIES 2,633.00

TOTAL FOR: ELHORN ENGINEERING COMPANY 2,633.00



MISC FRANSON, CARRIE

02/05/2024 UB deposit refund for account: 3.07000.0 150.00

TOTAL FOR: FRANSON, CARRIE 150.00

GARMENT GARMENT DISTRICT INC

18 POLICE UNIFORMS MATA & KENDREGAN 272.25

TOTAL FOR: GARMENT DISTRICT INC 272.25

HERALD HERALD-PALLADIUM

70885360 BOARD OF REVIEW ORG MTG - RUNS 3X 169.50

TOTAL FOR: HERALD-PALLADIUM 169.50

I&M/AEP INDIANA MICHIGAN POWER

012924 WHITE OAK LIFT DR ELECTRIC SERVICES 12/29/23-01/29/24 42.62

013124 PARK LIFT ELECTRIC 01/03-01/31/24 46.39

013124.04017231701 WELL #3 ELECTRIC 01/03-01/31/24 326.87

013124.04163431705 MORA PARK ELECTRIC 01/03-01/31/24 11.58

013124.04198685705 DOWNTOWN ELECTRIC 01/03-01/31/24 899.82

013124.04245352838 SIGN FOR SUBDIVISION ELECTRIC 01/03-01/31/24 14.35

013124.04263767701 MORA PARK CONCESSION 01/03-01/31/24 12.97

013124.04304035704 LIONS PARK ELECTRIC 01/03-01/31/24 19.64

013124.04308417106 M43 PARK ELECTRIC 01/03-01/31/24 15.29

013124.04332631706 M43 PARK ELECTRIC 01/03-01/31/24 33.81

013124.04336250909 GETMAN LIFT ELECTRIC 01/03-01/31/24 96.41

013124.04666721701 WELL #5 ELECTRIC 01/03-01/31/24 170.62

013124.04674522026 ARLINGTON SIGN ELECTRIC 01/03-01/31/24 107.28

013124.04814950506 LIONS LIFT ELECTRIC 01/03-01/31/24 921.44

013124.04833520408 POLICE STATION ELECTRIC 01/03-01/31/24 175.45

013124.04875184709 OUTSIDE LIGHTS ELECTRIC 01/03-01/31/24 52.94

013124.04935184707 01/03-01/31/24 CITY HALL ELECTRIC 11.58

013124.04984353203 ARLINGTON LIFT ELECTRIC 01/03-01/31/24 895.16

013124.21701 MONROE PARK ELECTRIC 01/03-01/31/24 12.34

013124.4701 DPW BLDG ELECTRIC 01/03-01/31/24 244.85

013124.4706 WELL #7 01/03-01/31/24 WELL #7 ELECTRIC 282.71

013124.5516 01/03-01/31/24 AERATORS ELECTRIC 2,505.73

013124.65184704 CITY HALL ELECTRIC 01/03-01/31/24 243.20

013124.84704 STREET LIGHT ELECTRIC 01/03-01/31/24 23.56

TOTAL FOR: INDIANA MICHIGAN POWER 7,166.61

JENSENS JENSEN'S EXCAVATING

S11788 6"X6" CLAY PVC FLEXCP, 6"X14' SEWER PIPE 323.46

TOTAL FOR: JENSEN'S EXCAVATING 323.46

KENNEDY KENNEDY INDUSTRIES, INC.

640328 2 PUMP EVALUATION & SERVICE 3,623.50

TOTAL FOR: KENNEDY INDUSTRIES, INC. 3,623.50



LANDERS LANDERS HARDWARE INC

013124 JAN 2024 VARIOUS PURCHASES 704.01

TOTAL FOR: LANDERS HARDWARE INC 704.01

MENARDS SH MENARDS SOUTH HAVEN

64768 OUTLOOK PLATFORM 52.42

TOTAL FOR: MENARDS SOUTH HAVEN 52.42

MRWA MICHIGAN RURAL WATER ASSOCIATION

2020-09880 STEVE LOWDER MEMBER REGISTRATION - WASTEWATER CONFERENCE 02/21-22/2024255.00

2020-09881 STEVE LOWDER MEMBER REGISTRATION - 2024 ANNUAL CONFERENCE 3/19/2024375.00

TOTAL FOR: MICHIGAN RURAL WATER ASSOCIATION 630.00

MIDWAY MIDWAY ELECTRIC INC.

7556 ELECTRIC DPW CEILING FANS 1,236.00

7557 REPAIR LIGHT FIXTURES @ LIBRARY 1,386.30

7564 WELL HOUSE #3 - CORNER OF NORTH AND SECOND ST 177.95

TOTAL FOR: MIDWAY ELECTRIC INC. 2,800.25

PITNEY PITNEY BOWES

020724 POSTAGE FOR METER 111.34

TOTAL FOR: PITNEY BOWES 111.34

PRIMAR PRI MAR PETROLEUM INC

648.044 DPW GAS 01/11/24 713.71

648068 DPW GAS 01/12/24 847.89

648420 DPW GAS 01/19/24 406.06

648472 DPW GAS 012524 482.54

648478 DPW GAS 01/26/24 980.11

854433 DPW GAS 01/17/24 714.45

TOTAL FOR: PRI MAR PETROLEUM INC 4,144.76

RELIABLE REPUBLIC SERVICEWS#646

0646001893394 02/01-02/29/24 DUMPSTER SERVICES 10,711.27

TOTAL FOR: REPUBLIC SERVICEWS#646 10,711.27

SCHNEIDER SCHNEIDER TIRE OUTLET INC

20112317 CAR #54 4 TIRES 668.00

TOTAL FOR: SCHNEIDER TIRE OUTLET INC 668.00

GOODYEAR THE GOODYEAR TIRE & RUBBER COMPANY

157-1074626 DPW 024X047 TIRES 2,868.15

TOTAL FOR: THE GOODYEAR TIRE & RUBBER COMPANY 2,868.15

TRACE TRACE ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES, INC

4020313 DRINKING WATER REQ 98.50

TOTAL FOR: TRACE ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES, INC 98.50



USBANK US BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE

521660225 POLICE STATION COPIER LEASE FEB 2024 166.27

522169671 CITY HALL COPIER LEASE FEB 2023 195.00

TOTAL FOR: US BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE 361.27

VB CENTRAL VAN BUREN COUNTY CENTRAL DISPATCH

0000000600 MODEM QB NOV24-DEC23 & DEC24-JAN23 POLICE 320.22

TOTAL FOR: VAN BUREN COUNTY CENTRAL DISPATCH 320.22

PP VILLAGE VILLAGE OF PAW PAW

DECEMBER-23 LAB ANALYSIS DECEMBER 2023 985.00

TOTAL FOR: VILLAGE OF PAW PAW 985.00

WALT DEVIS WALTER L. DEVISSER

012424 MECHANICAL PERMITS MONTH OF JANUARY 2024 144.00

TOTAL FOR: WALTER L. DEVISSER 144.00

YEO YEO & YEO, P.C.

586593 AUDIT ENDING 06/30/23 SVCS THRU 01/31/24 6,500.00

TOTAL FOR: YEO & YEO, P.C. 6,500.00

TOTAL - ALL VENDORS 63,652.94

CHECKS IN BETWEEN:

ACH COMCAST 3 INVOICES 173.70

TOTAL -ALL CHECKS IN BETWEEN: 173.70

PAYROLL:

2/2/2024 Jan Council Pay/City Manager Retro Pay 1,960.50

2/5/2024 01/29-02/04/24 18,684.62

45334 02/05-02/11/24 19,089.04

TOTAL -PAYROLL: 39,734.16

GRAND TOTAL ALL: 103,560.80



02/14/2024 INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CITY OF BANGOR                                       

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 02/21/2024 - 02/21/2024                                            

BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID                                          

BANK CODE: ROADS                                                         

Vendor Code Vendor Name

Invoice Description Amount 

SULLINS EX MIKE SULLINS EXCAVATING, INC

1557 DPW ASSISTANCE WITH SNOW REMOVAL FOR HARD TO REACH REMOVAL AREAS450.00

TOTAL FOR: MIKE SULLINS EXCAVATING, INC 450.00

UFC TREE UFC TREE CARE LLC

122123 2 TREES REMOVED, STUMP GRIND - DOWN PAYMENT 3,800.00

TOTAL FOR: UFC TREE CARE LLC 3,800.00

TOTAL - ALL VENDORS 4,250.00



02/21/2024 // INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR CITY OF BANGOR                                       

POST DATES 02/21/2024 - 02/21/2024                                                 

BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED OPEN AND PAID                                          

BANK CODE: T&A 2                                                        

Vendor Code Vendor Name

Invoice Description Amount 

ABA JOINT FIRE BOARD 19,919.65

BANGOR DDA 11,434.54

  BANGOR EDC 4,567.30

BANGOR HISTORICAL SOCIETY 4,087.42

BANGOR PUBLIC SCHOOLS 90,286.83

CITY OF BANGOR 51,085.17

SENIOR SERVICES OF VAN BUREN COUNTY 8,245.52

VAN BUREN COUNTY TREASURER 24,974.76

VAN BUREN DISTRICT LIBRARY 8,930.58

 VAN BUREN INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 70,818.83

TOTAL FOR: PASS THROUGH TAXES 294,350.60

TOTAL - ALL VENDORS 294,350.60



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA FACT SHEET 

 

To:  Mayor Farmer, Pro Tem Martinez-Serratos, Councilmember Rivers, McCrumb, 
Garcia, Muenzer and Uplinger 

CC:  Justin Weber, City Manager 

From:  Shelly Umbanhowar, Clerk  

CC:  Stephenie Cagle, Treasurer 

Subject: Department Head Reports   

Date:  02/15/24 

 

 

Council Action: 

For Information. 

Summary: 

At the time of the Council Packet preparation, these are the Department Head Reports received:   

 Treasurer Report 
 DPW Report 

 

 

 





















































MONTHLY
REPORT

BANGOR DEPARTMENT
OF PUBLIC WORKS

01/16

February 2024



CITY HALL/ VBD
LIBRARY

DPW workers have been busy with
building maintenance, this month
they repaired the motion detector
lights outside of the Van Buren
District library, replaced the door
handles on the Outer doors of the
Council room as well as installed
new code activated deadbolts.
They also added kick plates to
the City Hall front door way.

02/20C I T Y  O F  B A N G O R  D P W



MISC.
MAINTENANCE

The Department of Public works added
a drain to the building housing Well #7
and cleared out debris behind the
building, both are required by MI EGLE
Department. 

A new hose was installed on the
Backhoe, a new valve was installed on
the Vactor Truck and repairs were
made on the chainsaws.

C I T Y  O F  B A N G O R  D P W 02/20



STORM DRAINS

With the amount of snow melt and rain
this winter the DPW has been
repairing, cleaning and replacing the
storm drains along High St., First St.,
Second St., Third St., and Main St.

C I T Y  O F  B A N G O R  D P W

02/20



CITY SIGNS

Signs were added or moved around
the city to more appropriate or
advantageous places for residence to
better utilize city facilities and
parking. School Zone signs were
added near the Elementary Schools.

C I T Y  O F  B A N G O R  D P W

02/20



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA FACT SHEET 

 

To:  Mayor Farmer, Pro Tem Martinez-Serratos, Councilmember Rivers, McCrumb, 
Garcia, Muenzer and Uplinger 

CC:  Justin Weber, City Manager 

From:  Shelly Umbanhowar, Clerk  

CC:  Stephenie Cagle, Treasurer 

Subject: RBDG Parking Lot Project   

Date:  02/15/24 

 

 

Council Action: 

Motion to accept Resolution Number 2024-03, RBDG Parking Lot Project.  

Summary: 

Abonmarche representative will be here to explain this grant, funding and answer any questions 
you have. 

 

 

 





 95 West Main Street
P.O. Box 1088

Benton Harbor, MI 49023
T: (269) 927-2295
F: (269) 927-1017

www.abonmarche.com

Project:

Project No:

Description:

Stage:

Date:

Prepared By:
Notes:

Assumptions

Line Item Quantity Unit Unit Cost Item Cost
1 Mobilization,/Demobilization 1.00 LSUM 5.00% 3,740.00$                  
2 Asphalt Milling, 1.5" 3750.00 Syd 6.00$                   22,500.00$                
3 HMA Surface, 1.5" 310.00 Ton 120.00$               37,200.00$                
4 Surface Preparation 3750.00 Syd 4.00$                   15,000.00$                

-$                     -$                           
-$                     -$                           
-$                     -$                           
-$                     -$                           
-$                     -$                           
-$                     -$                           
-$                     -$                           

78,440.00$                

Line Item Quantity Unit Unit Cost Item Cost
0.00 -$                     -$                           
0.00 -$                     -$                           
0.00 -$                     -$                           
0.00 -$                     -$                           
0.00 -$                     -$                           
0.00 -$                     -$                           
0.00 -$                     -$                           
0.00 -$                     -$                           
0.00 -$                     -$                           
0.00 -$                     -$                           
0.00 -$                     -$                           
0.00 -$                     -$                           

-$                           

Line Item Quantity Unit Unit Cost Item Cost
5 ADA Parking Sigange 3.00 Ea 200.00$               600.00$                     
6 Pavement Striping 810.00 Ft 1.00$                   810.00$                     

1,410.00$                  

Quantity Unit Unit Cost Item Cost
LSUM -$                           
LSUM -$                           
LSUM -$                           
LSUM -$                           

2/8/2024

Engineer's Opinion of Probable Project Cost
Bangor, MI Cost Estimate
P24-0022

Allowances

Max Slusser
The City of Bangor seeks to improve a downtown municipal parking lot.  The approach (mill and overlay/crush and shape/reconstruction) is 
left to the engineering team to determine based on existing conditions.  

Miscellaneous

Subtotal: Miscellaneous

Removals

Subtotal: Removals

Proposed Improvements

Subtotal: Proposed Improvements

Item

C:\Users\ksaintz\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\U0C5AA51\Bangor MI - Cost Estimate
Printed: 1:19 PM on 2/12/2024 Page 1 of 2



 95 West Main Street
P.O. Box 1088

Benton Harbor, MI 49023
T: (269) 927-2295
F: (269) 927-1017

www.abonmarche.com

Project:

Project No:

Description:

Stage:

Date:

Prepared By:
Notes:

Assumptions

2/8/2024

Engineer's Opinion of Probable Project Cost
Bangor, MI Cost Estimate
P24-0022

Max Slusser
The City of Bangor seeks to improve a downtown municipal parking lot.  The approach (mill and overlay/crush and shape/reconstruction) is 
left to the engineering team to determine based on existing conditions.  

LSUM -$                           
LSUM -$                           
LSUM -$                           

-$                           

79,850.00$                
20% 15,970.00$                

95,900.00$                
17.0% 16,400.00$                

112,300.00$              
Engineering and Professional Services
Project Total: Bangor, MI Cost Estimate -  

Subtotal: Allowances

Summary
Construction Subtotal:
Construction Contingency:
Construction Total:

C:\Users\ksaintz\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\U0C5AA51\Bangor MI - Cost Estimate
Printed: 1:19 PM on 2/12/2024 Page 2 of 2



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA FACT SHEET 

 

To:  Mayor Farmer, Pro Tem Martinez-Serratos, Councilmember Rivers, McCrumb, 
Garcia, Muenzer and Uplinger 

CC:  Justin Weber, City Manager 

From:  Shelly Umbanhowar, Clerk  

CC:  Stephenie Cagle, Treasurer 

Subject: Lions Club / Apple Festival Road Closure 

Date:  02/15/24 

 

 

Council Action: 

For Information. 

Summary: 

Lions Club representative will be present to inform Council on the proposed road closure for 
Apple Festival. 

 

 

 













CITY COUNCIL AGENDA FACT SHEET 

 

To:  Mayor Farmer, Pro Tem Martinez-Serratos, Councilmember Rivers, McCrumb, 
Garcia, Muenzer and Uplinger 

CC:  Justin Weber, City Manager 

From:  Shelly Umbanhowar, Clerk  

CC:  Stephenie Cagle, Treasurer 

Subject: Pump at Well #9/Water Tower Lab  

Date:  02/15/24 

 

 

Council Action: 

For Information 

Summary: 

DPW Director Steve Lowder will update council.  

 

 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA FACT SHEET 

 

To:  Mayor Farmer, Pro Tem Martinez-Serratos, Councilmember Rivers, McCrumb, 
Garcia, Muenzer and Uplinger 

CC:  Justin Weber, City Manager 

From:  Shelly Umbanhowar, Clerk  

CC:  Stephenie Cagle, Treasurer 

Subject: Bryce Saylor Total Lawn Care Invoices 

Date:  02/15/24 

 

 

Council Action: 

For Information 

Summary: 

Attorney Scott Graham will give an update at the Council Meeting. 

This is a place for you to write down notes if you need to. 

 

 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA FACT SHEET 

 

To:  Mayor Farmer, Pro Tem Martinez-Serratos, Councilmember Rivers, McCrumb, 
Garcia, Muenzer and Uplinger 

CC:  Justin Weber, City Manager 

From:  Shelly Umbanhowar, Clerk  

CC:  Stephenie Cagle, Treasurer 

Subject: Helène Rivers Board of Review Resignation 

Date:  02/15/24 

 

 

Council Action: 

Motion to accept Helene Rivers Resignation from the Board of Review effective 02/09/24. 

Summary: 

See the following resignation email from Helène Rivers. 

 

 

 



���������	�
����	���������������������������������������������� !"#$%&�'��&�%( )*�+�,�"�-.+�/0/1�#2�-/3.0�45)&3�67��8!"#$%&�'��&�%9+�:�7;$��<���� +�#'� *"'�22�$%�'=��� �%$#2�&$�>�&'�2���?#$%&��?&#�@�&>�<����A��>>�62����,�"�*#�=�B2�+�/0/1�9��#����$C&=�@�'=�'#$=�=�#� �&>� ����6��A&�8�$%�&$�2���?&#�@D��&A������2�6*���$27=�6&$>7�62 �A�2��'=�#EE&�$2'�$2�2&�2��?#$%&��F�2=�F&*$6�7�G�$2�>�&'�'=��4�&$�




	4.022024.CITY OF BANGOR AGENDA
	5a.020524.Meeting Minutes.Draft
	6.Memorandum.Accounts Payable and Payroll
	6a.List of Invoices.GCK2.022024
	6a.List of Invoices.Roads022024
	6a.List of Invoices.T&A2.022024
	7a.Department Head Reports.Memorandum
	7a.ii.Treasurer Report.022024
	7a.ii.Treasurer Report.Budget.022024
	7a.iii.February DPW Report
	7a.RBDG Parking Lot Project.Abonmarche Resolution 2024-03
	7aaa.AbonmarcheEstimate
	Bangor, MI CE

	7b.Lions Club Apple Festival.Road Closure
	9a.city logo
	9a.DPW Pump Well
	9b.Memorandum.Bryce Saylor Total Lawn Care Invoices Update
	10a.fyi kobuta
	10c.Helene Rivers Board of Review Resignation.Memo
	10c.Helene Rivers.Board of Review Resignation

